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(THE MEETING WAS CALLED ORDER AT 1:11 PM) 

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY:  
Good afternoon, everybody, and welcome to the Parks Committee meeting of Wednesday, January 
27, 2010.  Would you please stand for the Pledge.   
 

Salutation 
 

Would you remain standing for a moment of silence for all of our men and women who are fighting 
overseas for our freedom.  
 

Moment of Silence 
 

Thank you very much.  Please be seated.  All right, we appear to have a light schedule for Parks.  
Let me just first put on the record that the Chairwoman, Lynne Nowick, is absent today as an 
excused absence.  Apparently and unfortunately she had a death in her family.  Our thoughts are 
with her.   
 
May I call up for the public portion, looks like number one is Carol Hart.   
 
MS. GHIORSI HART:  
Happy New Year.  I just want you to all know that I am here as Executive Director of the Vanderbilt 
Museum.  Noel Gish, our President, is here as well in case there are any questions.  We have an 
exciting year planned ahead of us, a lot of special events, many new initiatives.  
 
I did also want you to know that we have revised our Operating Budget from the budget submitted 
in June to better reflect the changes in the economy and some other assumptions that we had when 
we put together the budget at that time.   
 
I also wanted you to know the status of the star projector, the replacement of the Goto projector.  
That project has taken a lot longer than we had hoped for, but the good news is that it has moved 
through the County Attorney's stage and we believe is now in the hands of DPW and the engineers 
for final approval of the RFP.  We'll go to Purchasing and we are very hopeful that within the next 
two weeks the RFP will be out.  So things are moving forward.  
 
However, our schedule for that is certainly behind and there is no way we will have an opening of 
the new planetarium in 2010.  We are pushed back realistically now probably to summer of 2011 the 
way things seem to be going.  And, again, this is since August of 2008 it's been out of the hands of 
the Vanderbilt Museum.  It's just been winding its way through different County offices and it's just 
taking a lot longer to get paperwork and approvals through, so.  

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
Boy, that's disappointing.  I didn't mean to interrupt.  Are you completed?  I do have a question 
about that, though.  I mean, do we know what the hang-up is?  Is there something that makes this 
more difficult than other issues?  What are they saying to you, why is it taking -- what is it, it sounds 
like two years?  Is that three years?  One, two, three?  How long?   
 
MS. GHIORSI HART: 
Yeah, it took a very long -- right now there doesn't seem to be any hang-up, okay, so it is moving 
along.  Things just at every stage took many, many months more -- longer than one would have 
assumed.  In the summer of 2008 when we knew how to proceed, that we needed to hire a 
planetarium consultant, it took almost -- almost nine months to get the RFP written to hire the 
engineer who then can hire the consultant.  To actually get that consultant on board and working 
was a very long process.  And just every step of the way to get things approved and go through the 
different stages takes a very long time, and again, are out of our hands. 



  

  

 
We're trying to keep on top of it as much as possible, to ask for help to maybe make some phone 
calls and different people in the Legislature and BRO and County Exec's Office as well have been 
responsive to making calls saying "What's going on?"  But sometimes it was just that people are 
overworked.  We're not often the highest priority to move things along, so right now things were in 
the County Attorney's Office for an extended period of time, but it's done.  It's complete as of last 
week and we believe things will move.  

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
Is there anything that we can do from this committee to move this along?  One of the things that 
instantly comes to my thoughts is that this is a revenue enhancer for the Vanderbilt, and we have 
had so many problems as we all know financially, you know, this should be something that would be 
a priority. 
 
MS. GHIORSI HART: 
Yes, one would hope.  As I said, at this point it's moved along pretty quickly.  It will be in Purchasing 
and we are making an effort to keep the Presiding Officer in the loop if things seem to be taking a 
little bit longer than they should.  We will keep you all in the loop and let you know if things seem to 
be taking a little longer than they should.   
 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
I think you already said that it's taking a little longer than it should.  But, anyway, yes, sure.  
Legislator Montano.  
 
LEG. MONTANO: 
Hi.  Good afternoon.  How are you?  Talking about the finances, I think it was last year you came 
forward with a financial plan that talked about, you know, different avenues of fundraising that the 
Vanderbilt was going to undertake.  I don't have that report in front of me, but how is that going 
and what is the status and are you meeting your projections and where is, you know, just give me a 
quick update on that. 
 
MS. GHIORSI HART: 
I would have to say that the fundraising efforts, the revenue generating portion of that plan have 
not come forward as we had hoped at that time.  Certainly the economy is a big part of that.  What 
my focus had to be was on cutting down expenses, and that's -- and making the institution run with 
as lean a staff as possible, and we were able to do that.  So any lack in revenue generating we made 
up for in cutting expenses.  So at the end of the year we were only required to ask for and we only 
received $705,000 from the County.  

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
Was that in the omnibus or was that through the Hotel/Motel Taxx?   
 
MS. GHIORSI HART: 
That would have been, I believe, the omnibus.  We were, I guess, authorized to get up to $800,000 
on an as needed basis, and again, so we only needed to ask for $700,000.  We had another $45,000 
that came from our endowment income.  

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
Hold on.  I'm confused. The 700,000, and maybe I can direct this at Budget, the 700,000 was in the 
omnibus.  That has nothing to do with the Hotel/Motel Tax.  Am I correct?   

 
MR. REINHEIMER: 
That's correct.  That's General Fund.  The Hotel/Motel Tax starts January first.  

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
Of this year.  



  

  

 
MR. REINHEIMER: 
This year, correct.   

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
Okay.  So when you say you were required to ask for up to 800,000, you mean from the omnibus?  
All right.  So you asked for less than what you got last year is what you're saying.   

 
MS. GHIORSI HART:  
I'm talking about --  

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
I just want to get the numbers. 
 
MR. REINHEIMER: 
Okay.  The omnibus authorized a maximum distribution from the General Fund of $800,000, as 
Carol said, on an on needed basis.  We only remitted 705,000 of the 800,000 total that could have 
been remitted.  So they came in $95,000 less in 2009 then they needed from the General Fund.  

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
So we're talking about last year's omnibus.   

 
MR. REINHEIMER: 
Last year, 2009.  
 
LEG. MONTANO: 
Okay.  Was that the omnibus or was that a resolution that we passed in interim?   

 
MR. REINHEIMER: 
No, that was in the budget adoption process last year for the 2009 Operating Budget.  This year, 
Hotel/Motel Tax, there is about $690,000 in anticipated revenue from the Hotel/Motel Tax, which is 
Fund 192, it's not the General Fund, for the museum.   

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
Right, but we won't see that -- when will we see that, at the end of the year?   

 
MR. REINHEIMER: 
No.  The way that works they'll get distributions during the year.  

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
Okay.  As they come in?   

 
MR. REINHEIMER: 
I talked to the County Executive's Office.  They are administering the contract.  Upon the final 
signing and ratification of that contract  you'll get probably two months worth of anticipated 
revenue.  There will be a reconciliation towards the end of this year or maybe the beginning of 2011, 
so it's based on the actual revenue flow.  

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
I see.  Thank you very much.  With respect to the business plan that you had submitted last year, 
and I haven't looked at it in a while, but there were some shifting of positions.  You were eliminating 
some full-time positions or at least some permanent, well, that's not the right word, some positions 
with benefits, but at the same time you were transferring over some of those positions to 
consultants.  Am I correct in that?   

 
MS. GHIORSI HART:  



  

  

Not at that time.  We eliminated in 2009 four full-time positions.  
 

LEG. MONTANO: 
Okay. 

 
MS. GHIORSI HART:  
With benefits.  That work in part was made up by other salaried full-time people and part-time 
people.  We did hire some part-time people to take up for that, but it was a huge savings because 
benefits are a heavy part of our budget.   

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
So then what -- 

 
MS. GHIORSI HART:  
We moved --   
 
LEG. MONTANO: 
What would be your best estimate on the percentage of decrease in terms of your salaries and 
expenses, you know, in consultants from last year. Would you say it was a, you know, 20% drop, 
30% 50?   

 
MS. GHIORSI HART:  
It was in the area of 20%.   

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
Okay. 

 
MS. GHIORSI HART:  
What we -- the biggest savings that I was able to make was we were hiring outside professionals to 
do our security force full-time and that was in the area of 260,000 a year.  By eliminating and at this 
point, except for a couple of overnight shifts, we have eliminated the outside professional.  We are 
handling that in-house now with part-time staff, and we're saving in the area, I think we saved 
about $70,000 by making that shift.  

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
That's your big savings there in terms of the personnel. 

 
MS. GHIORSI HART:  
Yes.  Yes, that was a huge savings for us.  

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
Okay.  All right.  Thank you very much.   

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
Thank you very much, Legislator.  Are there any other questions of Carol?  Thank you.  The second 
card is from Noel Gish, of course, of the Vanderbilt as well.  Noel, welcome.  

 
MR. GISH: 
Thank you very much, and Happy New Year to everybody.  I would like to start by saying that we do 
have a meeting with Suffolk Community College tomorrow, that's on Thursday at 11 o'clock, to talk 
about the possibility of cooperation between Suffolk Community College and the Vanderbilt.  We had 
met initially before the end of year and that first meeting has resulted in this second.  So there will 
be four representatives coming in from Suffolk Community College tomorrow that will work on some 
possibilities of cooperation and synergy between the Vanderbilt and Suffolk Community College.  I 
would also like to --   

 



  

  

VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
What time is that?   
 
MR. GISH: 
I believe it's 11 o'clock.  

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
At the Vanderbilt.  

 
MR. GISH: 
Yes, sir.   
 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
And of course one of my staff members will be --  

 
 

MR. GISH: 
Absolutely.  I believe I e-mailed you the --  

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
You may have, I'm just not up-to-date on it.  

 
MR. GISH: 
Oh no, that's fine.  No penalty points.  I'd like to tell you also that we're moving ahead on the cell 
tower.  We did have some glitches along the way and some of you may be aware of that, but we 
have not abandoned that as a way of revenue generation.  That will be ongoing through the 
remainder of this month and hopefully it will be up and around by the spring.  I will tell you that the 
37 page RFP blank form was a little bit intimidating for me, but we'll be up and moving on that very, 
very shortly.  
 
I would also like to offer an open invitation to the Parks Committee to come over to the Vanderbilt at 
your convenience, whenever, for a formal walkthrough of the facilities.  For those of you who have 
not been there for a while or for those of you who would like to make some general comments about 
things you think we should be doing there, I'd be more than willing and happy to have the Parks 
Committee come over to the Vanderbilt and talk out loud.  So whenever that's a possibility.  I will 
e-mail Lynne and let her know that that's an open for her, too. Thank you very much.   

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
Thank you very much, Noel.  Are there any questions?  Okay.  Thank you very much.  And that's 
good news about Suffolk Community, we're getting back together again and we're moving forward.  
Excellent.  All right.  Would anyone else like to be heard?  There being no further cards, we'll move 
to the agenda.  All right.   
 

Introductory Resolutions 
 

The first one is our Introductory Resolution 1000, Reauthorizing use of Bungalow No. 5 at 
Hubbard County Park by Ducks Unlimited Inc. (Viloria-Fisher).   
 
Is the Commissioner here?  There he is.  Welcome, Commissioner.  It is my understanding that 
there was some initial concerns on your part and that they have been resolved by the sponsor and 
you guys have worked it out and the like.  However, that being the case, I know that Legislator 
Montano has some questions about it and do you have -- maybe you might want to make a 
comment first before.  

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
Sure.  Thank you very much, Mr. Vice Chair.  Yes, it is correct that the issues with the resolution 



  

  

have been worked out to our satisfaction.  We're comfortable with this resolution now.  This parcel of 
property, Hubbard County Park, lies within the core preserve area of the Central Pine Barrens.  It's 
one of the most significant parcels of natural open space in the County system.  It fronts on Flanders 
Bay, which is part of the Peconic National Estuary, and it is a -- originally was a hunting camp.  It 
goes back to the -- prior to the last turn of the century to the late 1800's and early 1900's.  It 
contains a complex of buildings, a main lodge, several cabins, a former kennel building, a well house 
and a brooder house where game birds were raised and then released on the property.   
 
Ducks Unlimited has served as a steward and essentially has been our partner in helping us manage 
the property and oversee the property.  They have a long and illustrious record of conducting 
conservation and restoration programs throughout the country, but in particular on Long Island.  
They were at the forefront of wetland restoration.  They have performed for us on this property a 
number of wetland restorations and other enhancements to the property.   
 
In addition, they have restored several of the buildings on the property, including one of the cabin 
buildings.  They oversee the property.  We have no full-time or even seasonal staff stationed there 
on a regular basis so they serve as our stewards and eyes and ears for the property.  And we also 
provide programming there.   

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
Excuse me.  I'm very much aware of Ducks Unlimited and I have they I think they do a great job.  
First of all, before I turn it over to Legislator Montano, I know that he has got some questions, 
what's a kettle building?  I don't know what that is.   

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
A kennel building, where they had hunting dogs who were kept in a kennel building.  Kennel, I'm 
sorry.   

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
Oh, kennel.  I wondered what that was, I was around parks for so many years and I never heard 
that expression before.  Kennel.  Okay.  I got it.  Legislator, would you like to?   

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
Yes, just a couple of questions.  Commissioner, I'm not familiar with the prior agreement.  This 
resolution, the one I have before me, the third resolved clause says that the terms and conditions 
will remain, you know, substantially the same, with the exception that Ducks Unlimited will not be 
required to perform or provide monies for wetland restoration.  So I gather that's an elimination or a 
deletion from the prior contract?   

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
Under the prior contract they provided $50,000 worth of capital improvements, which included 
wetland restoration on the property.  

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
Is that per year or for the life of the agreement?   

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
That was for the life of the agreement. 
 
LEG. MONTANO: 
So it was -- that would be $10,000 a year?   

 
 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
Yes.  

 



  

  

LEG. MONTANO: 
Okay.  And why -- now, if they are not going to provide that, who's going to provide it, or are we 
simply not going to do it.  

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
It's not that, but this is something that we will work out to our mutual benefit, that in terms of it was 
a hardship for them to impose on them an additional significant capital obligation.  However, they 
have agreed to partner with us in doing any additional restoration projects on the property.  They 
also do have some professional biologists and ecologists on their staff.  They would be providing 
services to us as well, which includes conducting natural resources inventories of the site which we 
would --  

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
Is that in a separate agreement or is that simply a verbal agreement that you have.  

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
That would be part of the contract that we would execute with them for the property, the one 
authorized by this resolution.   

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
So we don't have -- in other words, you're changing the contract.  We don't have the new contract 
before us, but we are passing the resolution.  Is that we're doing?   

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
Right.  

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
So once the resolution is passed, then you will go back and do a contract and it need not come back 
to us.  Is that accurate?  

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
That's correct.   

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
Is that right, Counsel?  Is that the way we normally do things?   

 
MR. NOLAN: 
Sometimes we do.  I mean, this resolution talks about the fact that Ducks Unlimited is going to 
perform environmental and educational programs, and what the Commissioner just described would 
really fall under that provision.  It would be an environmental program they'd be doing with the 
County.  

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
Are you going to place a dollar value on what they are going to provide in this separate agreement, 
or is that just open to, you know, how are you going to work that is what I am curious.  Because the 
fiscal impact statement says that there is no fiscal impact to the County, but if they are providing 
$10,000 worth of monies for whatever on a yearly basis and we're talking about a ten year contract, 
it seems to me that the fiscal impact would be $100,000 if you took it, you know, to it's tenth year.  
So I'm trying to differentiate between the $100,000 that we're losing and what we're going to pick 
up in your contract.  I'm trying to get an explanation of that.   

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
Well, I don't really see it as losing $10,000.  What I see it as is that in one sense it's avoidance of 
damages to the property because we have no full-time or seasonal staff stationed there.  Just the 
impact of potential vandalism and damage to the property that would be avoided --  

 



  

  

LEG. MONTANO: 
But they were doing that anyway. 
 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
What was that? 
 
LEG. MONTANO: 
They were doing that anyway under the prior agreement, were they not?   

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
Yes, they were, but that alone is --  
 
LEG. MONTANO: 
So what you're doing is you're eliminating that clause in the contract, which translates into $100,000 
expenditure to the County unless you pick it up through some other fashion.  What I'm asking is how 
do you intend to balance out or recoup that $100,000 that, you know, that the County no longer -- 
it's not dollars that they are giving us, but it's in kind is what you're saying; am I correct?   

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
Correct.  

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
So what are we going to get in kind that's going to equal the $100,000 is what I'm asking.  

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
Well, the services they provide, first of all, as was alluded to by Mr. Nolan, the educational services 
that they provide, the interpretive services --  

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
But they were already doing that, were they not?   

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
But there was no value given to those.  That was not counted in terms of there was never evaluated 
in terms of a dollar value that that provided previously.  

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
Right, but that was part of the contract.  

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
That's correct.   

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
So, you know, unless I'm missing something, that doesn't change anything.  We are still at the point 
where the new contract provides that they are not going to give us something that they have been 
giving us, which is translated into approximately $10,000 a year.  So I'm trying to figure out what 
concrete provision restores the money back to the County.  That's all I'm asking.  

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
Perhaps what would be helpful is a point of comparison.  We have similar agreements throughout 
the County for all our other historical sites.  We have agreements with historical societies to manage 
our historic sites.  Sagtikos Manor, for example, is one, the Deepwells Estate up in St. James is 
another, where we have entered into long-term agreements with various groups, non-profit entities, 
which have a vested interest in protecting and preserving the property.  They manage the property, 
they protect it, they provide services and they also do provide restoration to some of these, but in 
none of those do we require, set a minimum threshold for them to provide certain capital 
obligations.  



  

  

 
We do not have -- we only have -- we don't have full-time staff to man all these historic sites on a 
full-time basis, so we've worked out over the years a very, very successful partnership with different 
groups, and Ducks Unlimited is one of those groups.  In keeping with that, we don't have minimum 
capital obligations required for any of these other groups, however, they do go out and obtain grants 
for the properties and the same is true here with Ducks Unlimited.  They have obtained grants for 
other properties within the County, within the park system, that have been applied to restorations.  
That's something that we would expect that they would be serving in a role here.   

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
Right.  But I guess we are stuck on the point.  This is a modification of an existing contract.  The 
other contracts you're talking about may or may not have a clause that provides that they will make 
improvements.  What you're doing here is eliminating that particular clause, and what you've told 
me is that that clause is worth $100,000  to the County.  So I still don't think I'm clear in terms of, 
you know, is this a net gain, is this a break even, or is this a loss for the County.  

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
I don't see it as a loss.  That $50,000 was targeted to a very specific dam restoration program which 
they accomplished.  It was not for a generalized program of capital improvements.  It was for a very 
specific project.  They accomplished that project, that has been completed.   

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
So you're saying that we don't need them to do that anymore and that no one else is going to do it 
because it's done.  Is that what you're saying?   

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
There are other dam improvement projects for the site.  However, those are being funded under a 
separate capital obligation that the County has.   

 
LEG. MONTANO: 
All right.  Thank you.  

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
You're welcome.   

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
All right.  Thank you very much, Legislator.  Are there any other further questions?  Commissioner, 
anything else you'd like to add on this matter?   

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
No, just that as I indicated before we've had a long history with Ducks Unlimited.  They also served 
in a wetlands partnership with New York State DEC, Suffolk County Vector Control and the US Fish 
and Wildlife Service for a number of years.  So they have been at the forefront of doing a lot of 
environmental restoration.  They have had a significant presence on the Island in helping to provide 
for ecological preservation.  

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
Okay.  Thank you for that input.  I'll make a motion to approve.  

 
LEG. BARRAGA: 
Second.  

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
Second by Legislator Barraga.  All in favor?  Opposed?  Abstentions?  So approved.  (Vote:  
4-0-0-1 Not Present:  Legislator Nowick)   
 



  

  

All right, Introductory Resolution 1035, Renaming Dam Pond in East Marion after Ruth D. 
Oliva.  (Romaine) 
 
I understand that she has not gotten through the Renaming Committee as yet?  Okay, so I guess we 
have to table this.   

 
LEG. STERN: 
Yes.  This has not coming before the Sitings Committee yet.  We are looking at holding our next 
Sitings Committee meeting coming up in the next couple of weeks, so hopefully before our next 
Parks Committee meeting we should have had the Sitings Committee meeting by then.  

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
Do you know who this is? 
 
LEG. STERN: 
I'm sure we are going to learn a lot more about it at the upcoming Sitings Committee in the next 
couple of weeks.   

 
 

VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
Okay.  There you go.  So we have a motion to make a motion to table. Second by Legislator Stern.  
All those in favor?  Opposed?   

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
Mr. Vice Chair, I'm sorry.  If I may just add as --   

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
Yes.  I've never been called Mr. Vice Chair before.  I think that's great.  I like that.  Well anyway, go 
ahead.   

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
Thank you.  I'm sorry to interrupt.  I just had a few other items. We had contacted Legislator 
Romaine's office.  There's a few other items, though, in the resolution that should be corrected.  One 
is that it's referring to the renaming of Dam Pond.  Dam Pond is a physical body of surface water.  I 
believe what the intent was to rename Dam Pond Maritime Reserve.  It would be very difficult to 
rename a surface water body.  I believe the Town Trustees of Southold actually own that body of 
water.  Secondly --  

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
Oh, that sounds ugly.  

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
-- the property, as stated in the resolution, the property is adjacent to Inlet Pond County Park.  It's 
actually not contiguous to Inlet Pond County Park, it's located well east.  And thirdly, the property is 
jointly owned with the Town of Southold, so I believe that permission would also have to be obtained 
or sent from the town to renaming of this property.  That couldn't be done unilaterally by the 
County.   

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
I see.  Okay.  And you forwarded that information to Legislator Romaine?   
 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
Yes.  I spoke to his office yesterday on that.  

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
Okay.  Good.  Well, maybe he'll straighten this out by the time the renaming - but with those 



  

  

thoughts in mind, Legislator Stern, I'm not sure that we are even going to be able to address it in 
the Renaming Committee.   

 
LEG. STERN: 
It will come up our agenda.  Commissioner, if we can get maybe a copy of what you forwarded to 
Legislator Romaine that be would be helpful.  

 
COMMISSIONER PAVACIC: 
Sure.  

 
VICE CHAIR HORSLEY: 
Okay.  There is a motion to table.  Seconded by Legislator Stern.  All those in favor?  Opposed?  So 
moved.  (Vote:  4-0-0-1 Not Present:  Legislator Nowick).  That's all we have on the agenda.  
Is there anything else?  We're good.  Okay.  Motion to adjourn. 
 

(THE MEETING CONCLUDED AT 1:39 PM) 
 


